CITY OF ATLANTA

SUTTE 1900
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. ATLANTA, GA 30803 Adam L. Smith, Esq., CPPO, CPPE, CPPM, CPP,
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January 6, 2016

INTERESTED PROPONENT:

Re: FC-8370, Airport Security Services at Hartsfield-Jackson
Atlanta International Airport

Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum No.4, which is hereby made a part of the
above-referenced project.

For additional information, please contact the following personnel for the
respective solicitation: for FC-8370, Mr. Sherif Yassin, Contracting Officer, at (404)
330-6698, or via email at syassin@atlantaga.gov.

Sincerely,




Addendum No. 4

Re: FC-8370, Airport Security Services at Hartsfield-Jackson
Atlanta international airport .

January 6, 2016
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This Addendum forms a part of the Request for Proposal and modifies the
original solicitation package as follows:
» Responses to Questions

Proposals are due Thursday, January 21, 2016, and should be time stamped no
later than 2:00 p.m. EST on this day, and delivered to the address below:

Adam L. Smith, Esq., CPPO, CPPB, CPPM, CPP, CIPC, CISCC, CIGPM
Chief Procurement Officer
Department of Procurement
55 Trinity Avenue, S.W.
City Hall South, Suite 1900
Atlanta, Georgia 30303
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*#*All other information remains unchanged***

llovr us on Twitter @ATLProcurerment and Facebook (@ City of Atlanta Department of Procurement
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Acknowledgement of Addendum No. 4

Proponents must sign below and return this form with its proposal to the
Department of Procurement, 55 Trinity Avenue, City Hall South, Suite 1900, Atlanta,
Georgia 30303 as acknowledgement of receipt of this addendum on this day of

, 2016,

Legal Company Name of Respondent

Signature of Authorized Representative

Title

Date

Twitter (@A L Procurerment and Facebock @ City of Atlanta Department of Procurement
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The following questions and/or clarifications were requested by various Contractors:

What company presently has the contract? What is the current rate you are
paying per man hour for officers and supervisors? The employees presently
working, can they be re-hired by the successful bidder?

The current contractor is HSS Inc. (“HSS”). HSS pays its officers $11.00/hour and
its supervisors $13.50/hour. Current employees may be re-hired by the
successful proponent.

Would you be to tell us if these requirements for FC-8370 are currently or have
been being performed under a contract, who is the Contractor? What is the
contract number? What is the value?

Please see the response to question number 1 above. The contract number is
FC-5051. The current annual not-to-exceed amount is approximately $10
million.

Please provide the name of the incumbent for the Airport Security Services, the
expiration of the contract for the incumbent, the City of Atlanta Solicitation
number for the RFP for the incumbent and please advise if the City of Atlanta will
award one or more contract(s) for the HJAIA security services?

Please see the responses to questions number 1 and 2 above. The current
contract runs through May 2016. The City intends to award only one contract
for these Airport security services.

In the minimum qualifications listed in Part 1, Section 4.5 states that “each
Proponent must submit with its proposal documentation that demonstrates it is
duly authorized to conduct business in the State of Georgia”. The State of
Georgia requires for any organization operating as a contract security company in
the state is licensed by the Georgia Board of Private Detectives and Security
Agencies. Is it the City’s expectation that the proponent submit a copy of their
current security license as well as their state business registration?

No. Proponents are not required to (but may) provide copies of their licenses
from the Georgia Board of Private Detectives and Security Agencies.
Proponents are, however, required to provide evidence that proponent “is duly
authorized to conduct business in the State of Georgia.”

1. Question:
Response:
2. Question
Response:
3. Question:
Response:
4, Question:
Response:
5. Question:

As proponents must be a joint venture to submit a response, would the City
please confirm that the state registration and licenses must be held in the name
of the joint venture rather than the individual organizations which have formed
the joint venture?
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The joint venture requirement may be satisfied by partnership or formal entity.
In either case, the partnership or formal entity must have any and all licenses
required to perform the Services at or before any contract may be executed
with the City. Otherwise, please see the response to question number 4 above.

Would the City please confirm that all required insurance programs must be in
the name of the joint venture/proponent rather than the individual organizations
which have formed the joint venture, as well as the required payment and
performance bonds?

Yes. All insurance and bonds must be in the name of the joint venture
partnership or formal entity (i.e., the name of the contractor).

Sec. 2-1450. - Requirements for joint ventures of the City of Atlanta’s code of
ordinances, part (c) states that “each joint venture under this section, a written
joint venture agreement must be completed by all parties to the joint venture
and executed before a notary public, which clearly delineates the rights and
responsibilities of each member or partner, complies with any requirements of
the office of contract compliance as set forth in bid documents or otherwise, and
provides that the joint venture shall continue for, at a minimum, the duration of
the project.”

a.  Would the City please confirm that the requirement is for the members of
joint venture to remain as originally formed for the duration of the contract?

b. Is it the City’s expectation that the member(s) of the joint venture who is
the certified MFBE remain certified by the City for the duration of the
contract? For example, if one of the members of the joint venture is a certified
FBE firm and something transpires to lose the FBE status, and there is no other
certified MFBE member of the joint venture, would the contract be in default for
not having a certified MFBE member or having to alter the joint venture
partnership?

c. Additionally, if a member of the joint venture were to be acquired, declare
bankruptcy, experience significant service delivery issues or other significant
issues impacting the program and altering the structure of the joint venture,
would the City consider the contract to be in default?

Response:
6. Question:

Response:
7. Question:

Response:

a. Yes, the City anticipates that the members of the Joint Venture would
remain as originally formed for the contract duration.

b. The expectation of OCC is for the Joint Venture to find a firm that is
certified with the City of Atlanta by OCC and to remain certified through
the life of the contract.

c. The contract would be in default if the issues are not resolved to the
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satisfaction and approval of the affected stakeholder departments in a
timely fashion. Prime Contractor must document deficiencies,
communications of all efforts to cure, and initiate OCC’s procedures to
remove and replace the deficient team member.

In addition to the joint venture requirements, the City has outlined the
subcontracting goals in Appendix A. The joint venture program requirement is
for at least one member to be a certified AABE, HABE, APABE or FBE firm. Would
the City please clarify if the joint venture proponent which includes a certified
firm fulfills the appropriate subcontracting goal requirement or if the certified
firm has to separately provide the services for the subcontracting goal as well as
provide services as part of the joint venture? For example, two firms form a joint
venture named Firm C. Firm A is a large business and Firm B is a certified
AABE. Will the City allow for all work performed by Firm C to count towards the
A/H/AP ABE goal of 18.1% and only subcontract out the FBE requirement of a
minimum of 8.3%? Or is it the City’s expectation that Firm C provides 73.6%, an
A/H/AP ABE certified firm (which could be Firm B or another certified firm)
provides a minimum of 18.1% and an FBE certified firm provides a minimum of
8.3% of the required services?

If a certified MBE/FBE who is part of a successful JV team (and is also a minority
interest holder in the JV) lists the M/FBE JV team member on their participation
plan, the value of the self-performance of the certified MBE/FBE JV member
who is subcontracting back to the JV will be counted toward the participation
goal.

8. Question:
Response:
9. Question:

A couple quick operational questions for clarification:

1. Do the officers report to a single location for shift briefing prior to being
transported to their assigned post? If so,

a.  What is the typical duration of shift briefing?

b. Are officers transported by the contractor to their post or do they utilize
their own transportation?

2. Is parking provided by the City for contractor employees to park at the
airport? If not, what is the monthly fee for parking? Additionally, will the City
allow for employer paid parking to be included as part of the $2.00 per hour for
fringe benefits?

3. Would the City please confirm that the educational benefits identified under
the fringe benefit information does not include typical security officer training
which is required by the City or DOA?
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Response: | 1. Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such
detail in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

2. No, parking is not provided by the City for contractor employees. The public
parking fee is dependent on where the employee parks. No parking fees are
included in the fringe benefits.

3. Confirmed; regular officer training is not to be included in the fringe
benefit.

10. Question: | In regards to RFP FC-8370; | have one question, on page 65, section 2.5, it states
that the service provider will provide (at service provider's cost) onsite
transportation at all times for use by the security supervisor/coordinator. How
many vehicles are exactly required and what types of vehicles are being used
now?

Response: | Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

11. Question: | What is the overall purpose of the JV?

Response: | The City of Atlanta encourages, where economically feasible, the establishment
of joint ventures to ensure prime contracting opportunities for all businesses,
including good faith outreach efforts to utilize certified minority and female
business enterprises on Eligible Projects. On projects valued at five (5) million
dollars or greater, the Office of Contract Compliance shall determine on a
project-by-project basis whether non- discriminatory outreach efforts to enter
into a joint venture shall be required. Please refer to the Appendix A section of
the referenced solicitation for more detailed information regarding the
structure of joint ventures.

12. Question: | Outside of the JV partner being of a different race or gender, what other
Certifications, TSA requirements, or other qualifications are expected of the JV
partner that does meet one or both race/gender requirements?

Response: | The Joint Venture partner must be currently certified as a MBE/FBE by the City
of Atlanta.

13. Question: | If a JV is formed with an AABE or FBE, can that JV partner satisfy the 18.1%
and/or 8.3% AABE/FBE requirement?

Response: | If a certified MBE/FBE who is part of a successful JV team (and is also a minority
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interest holder in the JV) lists the M/FBE JV team member on their participation
plan, the value of the self-performance of the certified MBE/FBE JV member
who is subcontracting back to the JV will be counted toward the participation

goal.

14. Question: | What are the legal requirements of the JV?

Response: | Please see the response to question number 5 above.

15. Question: | In section 2.6 the RFP indicated that an ANSI/ISEA safety vest with Security
imprinted on vest is required. And stated “The Service Provider will provide
security officers’ uniforms and equipment...” To clarify this do you mean that
the, the Service Provider and/or Subcontractors will utilize their own company
uniforms except for the vest?

Response: | Contractor must provide all required uniforms and equipment (including safety
vests) at its own expense. The vests must be in accordance with the ANSI/ISEA
Safety Standard.

16. Question: | Part 1:

4 Minimum Qualifications subparagraph
4.2 Provide evidence of at least 10 vyears consecutive experience
within the last 15 years.
Does both partners in a joint venture have to show evidence of 10 consecutive
years of experience at a medium or large hub airport?

Response: | Please see the RFP document at page 2, paragraph 4.6.

17. Question: | 3.8 OCC Programs
Can an AABE be on more than one bid?

Response: | There is no prohibition of certified firms in participating on multiple proposals
at the subcontractor level. However, a firm can only propose/participate at the
Prime level on a single proposal or team. Please see the RFP document page 2,
paragraph 4.7.
18. Question: | Joint Venture

Performance Bond and Surety Bond

Does both parties in a joint venture have to provide these bonds?
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Response: | The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond requirement must be met by the
contractor at the time of contract execution.

19. Question: | Regarding the Airport Driver Safety Training & Ramp Certification to be provided
by Airport Operations, is there a charge to our company for that training and also
how many hours is that training? Who is required to take this course?

Response: | The Airport Driver Safety Training and Ramp Certification cost is included in the
required Airport badging and fingerprinting cost. The training takes
approximately 2.5 hours to complete and anyone requesting driving privileges
in the Air Operations Area (AOA) is required to take the training.

20. Question: | Who are the incumbent contractors and sub-contractors?

Response: | The current contractor is HSS Inc. and the subcontractors are Priority One and
Copeland Holdings.

21. Question: | What are the wages and bill rates currently, for each line item as listed on the bid
sheet?

Response: | Sufficient information has already been included in the RFP document,
complemented by certain responses herein, that Proponents may determine
what its cost proposal will be to meet the needs of the Airport as detailed in the
documentation provided.

22. Question: | Under training you state 16 hours of classroom and 24 hours of On-The-Job
training, is this above the mandatory Georgia State required training?

Response: | Yes.

23. Question: | What kind of training is required for the computerized Access Control System and
card readers? Who does this training and where is this training conducted?

Response: | Training is required regarding how to validate access media. Such training will
be administered by the contractor with information provided by the City.

24. Question: | Any cell phones required in this contract? How is communications handled at
each post?

Response: | Radios are provided by the City. Any other communication devices (e.g.,
cellphones) may be provided at the sole cost and discretion of the contractor.

25. Question: | Are any vehicles required with FC-8370 RFP? If so what kind and How many?
What is the mileage per year per vehicle?
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Response: | Vehicle requirements will be determined by the contractor in order to meet the
needs of the contract. The requirement will vary based on the contractor’s
Operations Plan; however, the contract requires a minimum of three (3)
vehicles be available and used for the perimeter posts.

26. Question: | How many vehicles are currently being used by the current contractor for
shuttling guards to post? What is the mileage per year per vehicle? What kind of
vehicle(s) are they using?

Response: | Approximately nine (9) vehicles are being used by the current contractor;
however, not all vehicles are used for transporting officers between posts.
Mileage information is not available. The types of vehicles currently being used
are Nissan pick-up trucks, Toyota Rav 4, Nissan van and Toyota vans.

27. Question: | Page 109 you speak of a dumpster, are we required to furnish a dumpster for our
trash?

Response: | There is no dumpster required for this contract.

28. Question: | The Holiday Compensation Requirement - is this billable on a separate line item
at a holiday bill rate, as the holidays occur? Or is this part of overhead expenses?

Response: | It is billable as a separate line item at a holiday billable rate.

29. Question: | Are there any computers required at each guard station? Does the Airport furnish
any computers?

Response: | Any computers required on post will be provided by the City. Any computers
required in the contractor’s office must be provided by the contractor.

30. Question: | Are officers allowed to stand post while Federal Background checks are in
process?

Response: | No officers will be allowed to work at the Airport until they have successfully
passed a background check and have been issued Airport-approved access
media.

31. Question: | All retained guards must have their insurances commence immediately? Does
this mean we must hold seniority for other benefits? (such as vacations)

Response: | The contractor must have all required insurance and bonding in place before

performing any services under the contract. Subject to the restrictions of the
contract, fringe benefits provided by the contractor to its employees are
offered at the discretion of the contractor.
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32. Question: | Do all the costs associated with the handheld or fixed radios belong to the city?
Such as a tower, license etc.

Response: | Yes.

33. Question: | Does the city have any mandatory vacation requirements? Such as one week
after one year, two weeks after two years three weeks after five years?

Response: | No.

34, Question: | Do the guards have a place to park free? If not, do they have a discounted airport
employee lot and what is the daily cost?

Response: | Please see response no. 2 to question no. 9 above.

35. Question: | Will the city accept reviewed financial statements in lieu audited ones?

Response: | Yes, in accordance with the instructions on Form 4 (Proponent Financial
Disclosure), the City will accept reviewed (by a Certified Public Accountant)
financial statements in lieu of audited financial statements.

36. Question: | Please show a breakdown of weekly billable hours per position:
Security Officers: (Portals, Concourse, Perimeter) - HPW
Security Officers: (screening Checkpoint) - HPW
Supervisors: (Portals, Concourse, Perimeter) - HPW
Supervisors: (Screening Checkpoints) - HPW
Security Coordinator | - HPW
Security Coordinator Il - HPW

Response: | Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

37. Question: | Does the Security Coordinator | and the Security Coordinator Il both have a
vehicle or do they share a vehicle? What type of vehicle do they have? What is
the mileage per year per vehicle?

Response: | They can share vehicles if the contractor chooses. Please see the response to
question no. 26 above.

38. Question: | Is the required fringe benefit package for full time employees only? (32 hours per
week)

Response: | Yes.
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39. Question: | Can | get a listing of all of the security vendors that were present for the pre bid
conference on November 12, 20157

Response: | The sign in sheet for the pre-proposal conference is available on line at
www.atlantaga.gov.

40. Question: | Can | get a copy of all the questions and Responses from the pre bid conference?

Response: | The questions received and the responses are included herein.

41. Question: | Can | get copies of the question and answers from all of the vendors regarding
this bid that were submitted after the pre bid conference?

Response: | Please see the response to question no. 40 above.

42. Question: | Who was the previous or current security provider? What was the previous or
current award amount?

Response: | HSS Inc. is the current contractor.

43, Question: | Can | get a map of assigned coverage areas?

Response: | This is considered security sensitive information (SSI) and will only be made
available to the new contractor.

44, Question: | Can | partner with another security vendor?

Response: | The City of Atlanta encourages, where economically feasible, the establishment
of joint ventures to ensure prime contracting opportunities for all businesses,
including good faith outreach efforts to utilize certified minority and female
business enterprises on Eligible Projects. On projects valued at five (5) million
dollars or greater, the Office of Contract Compliance shall determine on a
project-by-project basis whether non- discriminatory outreach efforts to enter
into a joint venture shall be required. Please refer to the Appendix A section of
the referenced solicitation for more detailed information regarding the
structure of joint ventures.

45, Question: | Is the payment/performance bond to be submitted with the bid?

Response: | The performance and payment bonds are not required with the proposal but
will be required at the time the executed contract is returned to the City by the
contractor.

46. Question: | Were there any performance and or safety issues, problem with the previous or
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current provider? If so, what were they?

Response: | No.

47. Question: | Will the City provide a copy of the current contract(s) for security at ATL?

Response: | No. Sufficient information has already been included in the RFP document,
complemented by certain responses herein, that Proponents may determine
what its cost proposal will be to meet the needs of the Airport as detailed in the
documentation provided.

48. Question: | Will the City provide a copy of current Post Orders, if available?

Response: | Posts were identified in the advertisement. Additional detail is considered
security sensitive information (SSI) and will only be made available to the new
contractor.

49. Question: | Is this RFP process occurring due to the expiration of the current contract?

Response: | Yes.

50. Question: | Will the Airport detail any TSA penalties incurred by or because of the current
contractors?

Response: | No.

51. Question: | Who are the current security service providers/suppliers? What is the volume of
service for each? How long have they held this contract?

Response: | Please see the responses to questions no. 1, 2, 3, 20 and 42.

52. Question: | What are the current wage and bill rates for contract security services at ATL?

Response: | Please see the response to question no. 1 above.

53. Question: | What is the current annual budget for security services?

Response: | The current annual not-to-exceed amount is approximately $10 million.

54. Question: | Please specify the posts and volume of personnel with regular authorized access
to AOA.

Response: | Posts were identified in the advertisement. Additional detail is considered

security sensitive information (SSI) and will only be made available to the new
contractor. Otherwise, such particulars are to be determined by the contractor
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subject to Airport approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will
include such detail in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

55. Question: | Does the Airport wish to retain members of the current security force?
Response: | Please see the response to question no. 1 above.

56. Question: | Will designated space be made available for Security Coordinators? What office
equipment/supplies will be provided and what additional equipment will be
necessary?

Response: | No. See the Scope of Service which details any equipment to be provided by the
Airport. Additional equipment and supplies will need to be determined by
contractor and will be provided at the sole expense of the contractor.

57. Question: | How many and what type of vehicles are currently deployed by the contractor(s)
at ATL? What is the approximate annual mileage for each? How many of these
vehicles operate in the AOA?

Response: | Please see the response to question no. 26 above.

58. Question: | Regarding the required training as conducted by the DOA Security Division (i.e.
Security Awareness Course, Airport Driver Safety Training and Ramp
Certification), will the City please clarify when this training is to be conducted and
how many hours each course is?

Response: | The training is conducted before an employee of the Airport receives access
media. The training takes approximately 2.5 hours to complete.

59. Question: | What has been the historical volume, frequency and advance notice for
additional coverage requests?

Response: | There is no trend analysis that can be performed to quantify these types of
operations. It will vary based on the situation.

60. Question: | Will the City allow the Vendor to meet the EBO requirements via subcontracting
rather than requiring bidders to set up a three-party Joint Venture (JV)
agreement? If not, what is the City’s objective in utilizing the JV structure vs.
subcontractors? We are happy to meet the requirement; however, due to the
complex nature of forming the JV, will the City grant an extension of the proposal
due date in order to meet the requirement?

Response: | The JV requirement is separate and apart from the subcontracting participation

requirements and will not be waived for the referenced solicitation. Please see
Addendum No. 3 regarding an extension of the proposal due date.
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61.

Question:

Section (General): Are any facilities provided for contractor offices, breakrooms,
etc.? |If facilities are provided, where are they located, what is the square
footage, and is there phone and internet access in these facilities?

Response:

No facilities are provided for contractor offices.

62.

Question:

Section (General): Is parking provided at remote posts?
Is parking provided for terminal based employees?
If parking is not provided, what it the monthly parking cost per employee?

Response:

Some parking is available at remote posts. Parking is not provided for terminal
based employees. The cost to park depends upon the location. This information
varies based on parking lot operator rate structure.

63.

Question:

Section (General): Do all posts have co-located restrooms?
Do all posts have phone and internet availability?

Response:

All posts do not have co-located restrooms. All posts do not have phone and
internet availability.

64.

Question:

Section (4.8. Pg. 2): States Joint Venture is required for this RFP. Form 2 on page
22 under the Respondent sections states, If the Respondent is a legal entity (e.g.,
corporation, limited liability company), then an authorized representative of that
legal entity must complete and sign this Contractor Disclosure where indicated.
Page 6 of Appendix A states; The City of Atlanta encourages where economically
feasible, the establishment of Joint Ventures, but does not state it is a
requirement. Please clarify if the statement in section 4.8 on page 2 is correct,
that only Joint Ventures may participate in this solicitation.

Response:

The Office of Contract Compliance (OCC) has determined that non-
discriminatory outreach efforts to enter into a joint venture are required on the
referenced solicitation. The Atlanta City Code of Ordinances defines “joint
Venture” as “an association of two or more persons, partnerships,
corporations, or any combination of them, established to carry on a single
business activity that is limited in scope and duration. The agreement
establishing the joint venture, partnership or other multi-entity relationship
shall be in writing. Further, participation in a joint venture shall be based on the
sharing of real economic interest in the venture and shall include proportionate
control over management, interest in capital acquired by the joint venture and
interest in earnings.” (See City Code sec. 2-1443)

65.

Question:

Section (11. Pg. 3): Please clarify that the Georgia Open Record Act affidavit
affirmatively declaring that specific information is required for each trade secret
or does that affidavit summarize all trade secrets in one affidavit document?
How are these affidavits to be included in our proposal, within the section the
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trade secret is listed or in a separate trade secret section of the proposal?

Response: | Proponents are encouraged to seek their own legal counsel regarding
compliance with the Georgia Open Records Act and protection of any
information Proponents believe to be trade secret. The statute cited requires
only one affidavit and the manner in which Proponent submits such affidavit
with its proposal is to be determined by the Proponent seeking to protect
information it believes to be trade secret.

66. Question: | Section (Form 1 Pg.18): The form states must be submitted prior to due date.
What is the required submittal date for this form?

Response: | Form 1 is the “lllegal Immigration Reform and Enforcement Act” form. The
instructions (page 10 of the RFP) clearly state that the completed form
(Contractor’s Affidavit) must be submitted with the proposal. The reference to
“prior to the due date” on the instruction page (page 18 of the RFP) means the
Contractor Affidavit may not be submitted late (after the proposal due date).

67. Question: | Section (22.7(c) Pg. 59): Is the current contractor unionized and covered with a
collective bargaining agreement?

Response: | No, the current contractor’s labor force is not unionized or covered by any
collective bargaining agreement with the City.

68. Question: | Section (2.4. Pg. 65): The service provider will provide additional security officers
at the contracted hourly rate to meet contingency requirements based on
changes in the airport operating environment. Over the last 12 months how
many times and how many employees where required to support this
contingency requirement?

Response: | This has varied over the last 12 months. Major increases included the staffing of
an employee screening checkpoint which required an additional 16 posts be
established. Additionally, inspection locations were activated requiring an
additional 13 posts be activated. Collectively these activations took place within
3 months of each other. Other activations were ad hoc and required to cover
special events/operations and typically required 1-2 officers per request.

69. Question: | Section (2.5. Pg. 65): The Service provider will provide (at Service Providers cost)
onsite transportation. How many vehicles are currently used to support the
operation?

Response: | Please see the response to question no. 26 above.

70. Question: | Section (3.1.8. Pg. 66): Knowledge of first aid for self and others. Does the City
have a specific guideline for this, Red Cross First Aid Training, etc?
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Response: | No, the City does not have a specific guideline.

71. Question: | Section (4.4.4 Pg. 68): (Supervisor) must possess an advanced level degree
(Associates degree or higher) more experience above the minimum requirement
specified above may count towards the education requirement. Can you specify
what level of experience would meet the education requirement?

Response: | This will be determined on a case-by-case basis.

72. Question: | Section (4.5.1. Pg. 69): (Security Coordinator |) Bachelor degree in Security
Administration, Public Administration, or related fields (more experience above
the minimum requirement specified above may count towards the education
requirement. Can you specify what level of experience would meet the
education requirement?

Response: | This will be determined on a case-by-case basis.

73. Question: | Section (4.6.1. Pg. 70): (Security Coordinator IlI) Bachelor degree in Security
Administration, Public Administration, or related fields (more experience above
the minimum requirement specified above may count towards the education
requirement. Can you specify what level of experience would meet the
education requirement?

Response: | This will be determined on a case-by-case basis.

74. Question: | Section (4.7. Pg. 70): Are relief hours for employee meals and break coverage
included with the hours listed?

Response: | No.

75. Question: | Section (4.7. Pg. 70): Can the City provide a breakdown of the Personnel
Assignment chart which lists the hours, to include job functions? Access Portal
Officers wages are $2.00 an hours less the Screening Checkpoint Officers. The
hour chart does not differentiate between the two classifications; this is also the
case with the supervisors.

Response: | Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

76. Question: | Section (5.1.4. Pg. 71): Is the 24 hours of on-the-job training billable since this is
productive time at a post?

Response: | No, the required 24 hours of on-the-job training are not billable to the City.
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77.

Question:

Section (5.1.6. Pg. 72): States that associated costs with SIDA badge application
and processing will be at Service Providers expense. Do all or some of the
employees require a customs seal? If so which positions require the custom seal?

Response:

There are no positions that require a customs seal.

78.

Question:

Section (8. Pg. 74): Compensation and Wages. |s there any wage escalation over
the term on the contract?

Response:

Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

79.

Question:

Section (8. Pg. 74): Shift differential for all hours between 1500 and 0700 hours.
Does this apply to any shift that begins within these hours? For example; if a shift
begins at 0000 and ends at 0800, does this require the shift differential be paid
for seven hours from 0000 to 0700 and one hour of no shift differential from
0700 to 0800, or since the shift begins in the time frame all eight hours are paid
the differential?

Response:

Yes.

80.

Question:

Section (8.1 Pg. 74): Benefits. If the Affordable Health Care Act costs increases
above the $2.00 per hour benefit requirement, is the contractor permitted to
renegotiate any mandated increases with the city during the term of the
contract?

Response:

During the term of the agreement, the Service Provider may raise any matters
affected by a change in circumstances; however, the City will not guarantee
that any modification will be made to the executed agreement.

81.

Question:

Section (Appendix A Pg. 6): States that the minority and female business
enterprise members of a joint venture on projects on which a Joint Venture is
required must be certified as such by the Office of Contract Compliance. If a
female business enterprise wants to be a joint venture partner for this proposal,
but is not currently certified, is there enough time for them to become certified
so they can participate as a joint venture partner in this proposal?

Response:

As long as the subcontractor has an application in pending status with the City
of Atlanta Office of Contract Compliance (OCC) on or before the proposal due
date there is enough time for the application to be processed before the
contract is awarded.

82.

Question:

Exhibit A, Section 1.3, requires the contractor among listed duties to conduct
screening of employees and vehicles.
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A.

Are screening officers expected to operate magnetometers and/or X-Ray
machines as part of their screening responsibilities?

Response:

Yes.

83.

Question:

Exhibit A, Section 2.5 states, “The Service Provider will provide (at Service
Provider’s expense) onsite transportation at all times for use by security
supervisor/coordinator to respond to security requirements at various locations
on the airport and to post security officers at various sites.” Exhibit A, Section 4.7
identifies 7 supervisor and 64 security officer posts in addition to the 2
coordinator positions.

A.
1.

Does each supervisor position require a response vehicle? No.

If not, which supervisor posts require a response vehicle? Those posts
responsible for overseeing an external post.

What is the average annual response vehicle mileage? Information not
available.

Is parking available for these vehicles, and is there a fee for this parking?
Parking for vehicles is available and at contractor’s expense. The fee
will vary by location.

Are different types of response vehicles required? For example, do
response vehicles operate exclusively outdoors, or is a vehicle also
needed for response inside the terminals? No indoor response vehicles
are required.

Which of the 64 security officer posts require the use of a vehicle for
posting the security officers? The 3 perimeter posts.

Assuming the Coordinator’s office is the central point, what is the
distance to these posts? This information is unavailable. The
Coordinator’s office location is determined by the contractor, not the
city.

How many miles per day are used for posting? This information is
unavailable.

As an alternative, please provide a map identifying all posts, the starting
point for posting, and the number of officers assigned to each post.

Is there space near the perimeter posts for officers to park their privately
owned vehicle? This depends on where the vehicles for the post are
stored.

Are any of the posts designated as mobile patrol posts requiring the use
of a vehicle? If so, please identify these posts, the type of vehicle
required, and the estimated annual mileage. The perimeter posts; off-
road capable vehicle required; annual mileage information is
unavailable.

Without significantly more information, it is not possible to determine the
number of vehicles and vehicular support required to adequately service this
operation.
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Response:

Please see the responses provided above following each question.

84.

Question:

We did not find any discussion regarding restroom or meal breaks in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services. Are all posts self-relieving for these breaks? If some posts
require a dedicated relief officer, please identify which posts these are, and
where they are located. We will need the locations to determine if vehicle
transport is needed.

Response:

All posts are expected to be staffed 24/7 per the contract. No posts may be
unmanned or abandoned for self relief or any other reason.

85.

Question:

Exhibit A, Section 4.7 divides the posts into four locations; perimeter, concourse,
domestic terminal, and international terminal. Section 8 identifies wage rates
based on access portal, concourse, perimeter and screening positions.

A. Please confirm all posts in Section 4.7 identified as Perimeter or
Concourse Posts are paid at the wage assigned for Concourse and
Perimeter assignments.

B. What wage rate do we pay officers and supervisors assigned to the
Domestic and International Terminal Posts? Are these all Screening
Checkpoints, or some combination? Please clarify. We must know the
wage rates for each post in order to accurately price the work.

Response:

This assumption is correct; perimeter and concourse posts are paid at the
perimeter and concourse rates. The rate depends on the location. Some of the
domestic and international terminal posts are screening locations and some are
inspection locations. For pricing purposes, assume fourteen (14) of the officers
in the domestic terminal are paid at the screening rate.

86.

Question:

Exhibit A, Section 8 requires a shift differential be paid to all officers and
supervisors working between 1500 hours and 0700 hours. This shift differential is
expressed as a range from at least $0.25 per hour to a maximum of $0.50 per
hour. Please confirm the service provider is free to choose any amount between
$0.25 and $0.50 per hour as the shift differential for all hours worked between
1500 and 0700 hours, and not required to pay $0.25 per hour for evening hours
(1500-2300) and $0.50 for night shift (2300-0700).

Response:

The Service Provider has discretion to decide which rate to pay within the $0.25
- $0.50 range.

87.

Question:

Exhibit A, Section 8.1 specifies a fringe benefit based on $2.00 per hour per
employee, to include medical, dental, and life insurance, vacation and sick leave,
and education benefits. It is our experience that the cost of only a medical plan
in compliance with the Affordable Care Act (ACA) exceeds $2.00 per hour per
employee. Please confirm a fringe benefit based on $2.00 per hour per employee
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is compliant with all city and state requirements.
A. Isthere a minimum number of days required for vacation and sick leave?
B. Is the Service Provider required to provide educational benefits?

Response:

Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

88.

Question:

Exhibit A.1, Cost Proposal provides space for only one Hourly Bill Rate per line
item. Is there a provision for annual wage adjustments during the three year
base period, or is the Service Provider expected to average any anticipated wage
increases over the three year period?

Response:

Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

89.

Question:

Part 2 provides proposal requirements and instructions for Volume |I.
A. s there a page limitation for Volume I?

Response:

No.

90.

Question:

Part 2 provides proposal requirements and instructions to include required
information to be provided in Volume I. In this regard, section 2.6.1.1, Overall
Project Experience and Performance, requires the proponent to “provide/exhibit
a rating/billing structure that is both comprehensive and commensurate with the
applicable U.S. DOL standards.”
A. In order to properly and effectively respond to this requirement, please
clarify what is meant by rating/billing structure. Are we to provide cost
history/data in this section?

Response:

Proponents are not required to provide historical information. Rather,
Proponents shall provide a proposed structure that is in accordance with the
requirements for this contracting opportunity.

91.

Question:

RFP Part 2, Section 3, Volume I, states that all respondents including JV partners
who have chosen to submit a proposal in this procurement and will be listed as a
prime contractor with the City must fill out all forms in their entirety.

Are all JV partners required to submit forms or only the prime contractor?

Response:

The joint venture entity (whether a partnership, a limited liability company, or
a corporation) would be the prime contractor and as such is required to
properly execute all forms. Please refer to the instructions for each form. Some
forms require the joint venture entity AND each of the partner/members to
complete the forms.

FC-8370—- ADDENDUM NO.4 PAGE 18




MODIFICATIONS ARE INDICATED IN BOLD ITALIC FACE TYPE
PROJECT NUMBER FC-8370 — AIRPORT SECURITY SERVICES

ADDENDUM No. 4

92. Question: | Benefits — When determining the value of employee benefits, does
unemployment taxes, FICA and workers compensation count?

Response: | No, such payroll deductions and employer contributions should not be
considered benefits.

93. Question: | Benefits — Is the required contribution per employee or an average over all
employees?

Response: | Please refer to the form of Services Agreement, Exhibit A (Scope of Services),
section 8.1 which requires a fringe benefits program “based on a cost of $2.00
per hour per employee.”

94. Question: | Will there be any weighted evaluation with regard to the percentage of
ownership of the parties in the newly established Joint Venture?

Response: | No.

95. Question: | Please clarify if there are specific elements desired in the structure of the Joint
Venture.

Response: | No.

96. Question: | If one or more parties in the Joint Venture have certification status as one of the
required MWBE, does this count toward the required participation?

Response: | If a certified MBE/FBE who is part of a successful JV team (and is also a minority
interest holder in the JV) lists the M/FBE JV team member on their participation
plan, the value of the self-performance of the certified MBE/FBE JV member
who is subcontracting back to the JV will be counted toward the participation
goal.

97. Question: | Does the Joint Venture Agreement have to be completed and executed at the
time of proposal?

Response: | Yes.

98. Question: | Does the Joint Venture have to be incorporated at the time of proposal? If not,
when is proof of an incorporated entity required?

Response: | If the joint venture entity forms as a corporate entity which requires
incorporation then such incorporation must be accomplished and formalized
prior to the proposal due date. Proof of compliance must also be included with
such Proponent’s proposal materials.
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99.

Question:

A Joint Venture will require a separate security license. At what point will the
proposer be required to show proof of a Georgia Security license?

Response:

Please see the response to question no. 5 above.

100.

Question:

Can a company still bid if they are in the lieu of getting their licenses in the state
of Georgia?

Response:

Please see the responses to questions no. 4 and 5 above.

101.

Question:

Can the proposal due date be pushed back some? There is very little time to
review, due diligence for a Joint Venture and have it turned in 14 days prior to
the proposal due date.

Response:

Please see Addendum No. 3 regarding an extension of the proposal due date.

102.

Question:

The RFP states that contractors provide all materials, tools, supplies, equipment
and vehicles for the contract. Can you give more detail on what is required? As
well as how many vehicles and the approximate mileage driven by the vehicles?

Response:

Tools supplies and equipment vary but in general include flashlights, safety
vests, general office supplies (paper, paper clips, computers, pens, pencils,
clipboards, etc.). The number of vehicles required for the contract will be
determined by the proponent; however, the contract will require a minimum of
three vehicles be available and used for the perimeter posts.

103.

Question:

Page 70 states total hours and page 77 has a breakdown of wages and
positions. Can you also provide the hours allocated to each position and wage on
page 777

Response:

Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

104.

Question:

Page 73 mentions of Financial Penalties. | didn't see any specific details of these
penalties in the RFP. Can you please explain or provide more detail?

Response:

Section 5.1.18 of the Scope of Services states that the City reserves the right to
issue financial penalties and/or citations (Breach of Rules Notices) in
accordance with the Airport Security Program for Contractor Employees’ failure
to follow the Airport Security Program rules. For further information, see
Atlanta City Code Section 22-66, part (c).

105.

Question:

The RFP states that Holidays will be paid at one and a half times the officers
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wage, can the contractor bill one and a half the bill rate?

Response:

Such particulars are to be determined by the contractor subject to Airport
approval (if necessary). It is anticipated that proponents will include such detail
in their Operations Plan at the outset of the contract term.

[END OF DOCUMENT]
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